CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF NEW YORK

----X

TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

of the

LAND USE SUB COMMITTEE ON PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS, & CONCESSIONS

----X

March 18, 2009 Start: 9:53 am Recess: 10:08 am

HELD AT: Council Chambers

City Hall

B E F O R E:

DANIEL R. GARODNICK

Chairperson

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Maria Baez

Sara M. Gonzalez Inez E. Dickens Vincent Ignizio

## A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

Carol Clark Assistant Commissioner NYC HPD

Terry Arroyo Director of Land Use NYC HPD

Lev Kushner NYC Parks Department Planning Division

Katherine Kelman Project Manager NYC Economic Development Corporation

2	CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Good
3	morning everyone. Welcome to the Subcommittee on
4	Planning, Dispositions,, and Concessions, this is
5	a Subcommittee of Land Use of the New York City
6	Council. Today's date is Wednesday, March 18th,
7	my name is Dan Garodnick, I have the privilege of
8	chairing this Subcommittee. I'm joined today by
9	Council Member Sara Gonzalez, Inez Dickens, and
10	Maria Baez. We have a quorum and so we're going
11	to get right into it.
12	We have two items on the agenda
13	today. The first is Land Use number 930, which is
14	567 West 180I'm sorry, 183rd Street. C090071HAM
15	in Manhattan, Community Board 12, in the district
16	of Council Member Martinez. I'll invite HPD to
17	come to the table and introduce this item.
18	Ms. Clark, Ms. Arroyo, welcome.
19	MS. CAROL CLARK: Thank you,
20	Chairman Garodnick and members of the
21	Subcommittee. I'm Carol Clark, Assistant
22	Commissioner, HPD, and I'm joined by Terry Arroyo,

LU 930 consists of the proposed disposition of one occupied city-owned building,

HPD's Director of Land Use.

2.0

2.3

at the site.

2	as you cited,	located at	567	West	183rd	Street
3	under HPD's S	pecial Proje	ects	progr	ram.	

Since 1989, a not-for-profit

organization FACES New York HDFC has leased the

property on a month-to-month basis from HPD

providing transitional housing to its clients.

Formerly known as the Minority Task Force on AIDS,

FACES New York now plans to purchase the property

from HPD. It will continue to operate

transitional housing and provide social services

The organization serves individuals with disabilities newly released from prison who seek to return to their community. FACES New York offers counseling and case management, while identifying permanent housing for its clients.

Upon approval of this ULURP application, HPD will convey the building to FACES New York HDFC.

Council Member Miguel Martinez has been briefed and indicated his support.

CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

Just so I understand, it's a sale to FACES New

York, are there any restrictions on future

2	MR. LEV KUSHNER: Better. Hi, I'm
3	Lev Kushner from the New York City Parks
4	Department Planning Division and I'm just here to
5	represent this project and just to stateto
6	introduce the project I should say, and just to
7	state that this ULURP action is strictly a result
8	of a clerical error. Where we went through with
9	the project the first time, we missed a very, very
10	small bit of the parking lot and that the result
11	of this ULURP action will not make any changes
12	whatsoever to the project as was passed
13	originally.
14	And with that, I'm going to pass it
15	off to EDC.
16	MS. KATHERINE KELMAN: Thank you,
17	my name is Katherine Kelman, I'm a project manager
18	at the Economic Development Corporation and I'll
19	just briefly go through the substance of this
20	action.
21	So this ULURP action is sought for

So this ULURP action is sought for portions of two public parking lots near Yankee Stadium which are a part of the existing Yankee Stadium parking facilities.

Five tax lots and a portion of a

sixth tax lot were accidentally omitted from the

ULURP application, though they were clearly

included in the diagrams for the final

Environmental Impact Statement.

The history of this is that in connection with the construction of the new Yankee Stadium, the New York City Economic Development Corporation and the Empire State Development Corporation agreed to provide certain assistance with respect to the development of city park facilities and public parking facilities in the vicinity of the stadium. Included among these was disposition through a lease and operation of surface parking lots 13B and 13C. They're located in Community District 4 and are bounded by the Major Deacon Expressway, the Harlem River, and Metro North Rail right-of-way. And we have a map here if you'd like to see it.

Originally, the Department of
Citywide Administrative Services and the
Department of Parks and Recreation submitted a
ULURP application for the disposition through a
lease of the city park facilities and public
parking facilities, including these parking lots,

13B and 13C, in September 2005 and the project received final City Council approval in April 2006. However, five tax lots and a portion of a sixth tax lot were omitted from the ULURP application, though they were clearly included in the diagrams in the final Environmental Impact Statement.

So this application is a follow-up corrective action to that 2005, 2006 ULURP. The action requested is approval for disposition through a lease of these tax lots with the restriction to parking and accessory uses. Once dispositioned through a lease of these tax lots is approved, the Department of Parks and Recreation intends to amend its lease with EDC in order to incorporate these tax lots into the lease.

The lease is assigned to the Bronx Parking Development Company which manages the parking facility project.

Parking lots 13B and 13C are currently used for surface parking under a license agreement, they will continue to be used as surface parking once approved for disposition and incorporated into the overall lease for the

2.0

parking facilities managed by the Bronx Parking

Development Company. So no additional parking

spaces will be created as a result of this ULURP

action and, as Lev said, nothing is changing in

the real world.

So the status of the approvals is that this application was--we certified into ULURP in October 2008, a modification technical memorandum signed by the Department of Parks was issued in October 2008 that found that the proposed modifications would not alter any of the studies or finding contained in the final Environmental Impact Statement for the project.

This ULURP received an approval vote from Community Board 4 in November 2008 following a public hearing, it received a positive recommendation from the borough president December 2008, and was approved by the City Planning Commission in February 2009.

After the ULURP is complete, the amendment of the lease for these tax lots will also require a 384-B4 [phonetic] review.

So I'm happy to answer any questions and thank you.

The parking lots will remain the same size,

25

there's no new parking being created, they'll continue to be used the same way.

CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: What would be the impact of just leaving this mistake as is in the lease and the fact that it's off the initial disposition?

MS. KELMAN: Well those tax lots are not currently approved for disposition in the long term, so what will happen after, you know, if this ULURP is approved is that those tax lots will be incorporated into overall lease for all of the public parking facilities near Yankee Stadium, the lease that the Bronx Parking Development Company administers, so it will just, you know—it's better for legal reasons to include all of the parking lots in the lease because the BPDC will have the authority to administer them in the long term.

CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. So just to understand, if we did not do it, I understand what happens if we do, but let's say we didn't and Bronx Parking Development Company did not have the precise authority to I guess oversee or--I don't know exactly what--I guess it would be

2.0

2	within	the	jur	isdiction	of	the	Parks	Department
3	still,	is t	that	correct?				

MS. KELMAN: Then what would happen if this ULURP is not approved is that those parking lots, you know, in the short term are being used as parking through a short term license agreement, which is just not sort of—not a long term arrangement. So in other words, including those parking lots in the overall lease for all of the parking facilities sort of brings it into the same administration as the rest of the public parking facilities near the stadium.

CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.

MS. KELMAN: So in other words, the license agreements are short term and this will allow them to be incorporated into a long term lease.

CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. I failed to note that we've been joined by Council Member Vincent Ignizio of Staten Island and he also happens to have a question, so...

COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Yes, thank you very much. Does the proceeds that are brought in from the parking facility, where do they go?

[Off mic] Well I can

How are they--you know, somebody comes in, they pay their \$10 or I don't know what number it's going to be for the new Yankee Stadium, but they pay their money, where does that money go to?

MS. KELMAN:

answer that question as well. The revenues received for the parking go to the Bronx Parking Development Company, which, you know, administers the parking facilities. They have a variety of costs that they are responsible for, such as operating costs, debt service on the bonds that were issued to construct the public parking facilities. So it's essentially water full [phonetic] of costs, they also are responsible for paying pilot payments to the city, and sort of the leftover revenues go to the city as well. So it's a water full of costs with, you know, the debt service being one of the primary ones.

COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: I understand, okay, and I just want to be clear on that and my understanding has been made and I want to hear it for myself since I came in slightly late and I do--

MS. KELMAN: Sure.

2.0

## 2 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: --

apologize, is that this was a matter of a clerical error and not of a desire to have a two-stage process in order to increase the amount of square footage for parking--

## [Crosstalk]

MS. KELMAN: Not at all, the amount of square footage for parking is not being increased--

COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Okay.

MS. KELMAN: --the parking lots are staying the same size. What happened is that the tax lots in that area are, you know, some of that land has not been in private ownership in a while so the surveys were difficult to do, so when the surveys were being done during the first ULURP, some of the tax lots numbers just weren't known, so they didn't make it into the list of tax lots being approved for disposition.

COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Okay.

MS. KELMAN: So a more accurate survey revealed that five tax lots and a portion of the sixth tax lot were not listed in the ULURP, even though they were included in the diagrams in

1	PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS, & CONCESSIONS 18
2	properties sit. And on the Land Use number 930
3	and 1017, we'll be voting, Chair recommending an
4	aye vote on both items. I'll ask the Counsel to
5	call the roll.
6	MS. CAROL SHINE: Carol Shine,
7	Counsel to the Subcommittee.
8	Chair Garodnick?
9	CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I vote aye.
10	MS. SHINE: Council Member Baez.
11	COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.
12	MS. SHINE: Council Member
13	Gonzalez.
14	COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye.
15	MS. SHINE: Council Member Dickens.
16	COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye.
17	MS. SHINE: Council Member Ignizio.
18	COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Aye.
19	MS. SHINE: By a vote of five in
20	the affirmative, none in the negative, and no
21	abstentions, the aforementioned items are approved
22	and referred to the full committee.
23	CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you
24	very much and we are adjourned.

I, Tammy Wittman, certify that the foregoing transcript is a true and accurate record of the proceedings. I further certify that I am not related to any of the parties to this action by blood or marriage, and that I am in no way interested in the outcome of this matter.

Tammy Wittman	1
---------------	---

Signature									
Date	April	6.	2009						